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Chairman Koppelman:  Opened the meeting on HB 1541. 
 
Rep. Buffalo:  Introduced the bill.  (Attachment #1) Read testimony. (:35-2:40) 
 
Vice Chairman Karls:  Is there a conference held now that regards human trafficking 
awareness and prevention?  Why wouldn’t they have the human trafficking commission there 
now?    
 
Rep. Buffalo:  Throughout this process and researching the best practices in reaching our 
educators and administrators we first started looking into whether the Human Trafficking 
Commission could provide this training in the class room.  Within the school system there is 
currently an allotted number of non-paid days and professional development days so it was 
challenging to find a way to reach them. This bill would provide a solution to that where 
educators and administrators were expected to attend so they would present it annually at 
an educational conference where they are expected to attend. 
 
Vice Chairman Karls:  Were you thinking the teacher’s convention or school administrator’s 
convention? 
 
Rep. Buffalo:  Yes when visiting with the Superintendent of Public Instruction there is support 
for this bill and having the Human Trafficking commission present one at their annual joint 
conferences. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman:  You are referring to teacher’s conferences now. 
 
Rep. Paur:  Can’t the trafficking commission do that now? 
 
Rep. Buffalo:  Yes I believe so. This would make sure that it was in code.  This is a very 
important topic.  
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Chairman K. Koppelman:  You mentioned that teacher’s convention is in transition.  How 
many folks do you expect to be reached by this?  
 
Rep. Buffalo:  The DPI office said this would work and they are in full support of having the 
Human Trafficking present at an annual conference. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: The language says shall; not a may. Is there a receptacle 
requirement forcing such a gather to schedule or allow this kind of presentation? 
 
Christina Sambor, Youthworks: (Attachment #2) Went over the testimony.  We are 
supportive making sure the leaders are kept aware of the problem of human trafficking. Our 
state numbers reflect about a quarter of the identified victims that we serve are minors.  
Homelessness for youth in ND is a lot bigger problem than people think. We have 400 youth 
in the area at risk.  Our agency should be asked by the commission to do this and we would 
be more than happy to do it. We want to make for sure if there is a mandate it is reciprocal. 
This is an important topic to make sure we keep on an annual basis to be sure any new 
administrator’s or employees are aware of the nature of the issue in ND.  
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Do you see Youthworks the primary educational entity on human 
trafficking in ND or is that the commissions job or is that a joint responsibility. 
 
Christina Sambor:  We did clarify last session Human Trafficking task force took over the 
training.  Youthworks has the task to manage training.  We do a lot of engagement with 
schools. 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  Do we have about 21-22 human trafficking cases in ND per year? 
 
Christina Sambor:  We track data on both criminal investigations and then data on victim’s 
services cases where we work with the victim and those numbers are different. 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  How are we doing in ND versus the country? I was taking my figures from 
Rep. Buffalo’s testimony. 
 
Christina Sambor:   Trafficking data has not been collected very long in the state. Our data 
shows around 80-90 victims per year that are identified.  There is usually a carryover of about 
a third to half of those victims.  Nationally those statics are about 26% of the victims are 
minors and we see about the same percentage here.  It tends to be people who are in their 
early 20s so when we are working with folks in the state it is young people. This exploitation 
typically begins in adolescence and volubility. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Essentially this bill requires the commission to make this 
presentation to the educational communities.  Do we need a law? 
 
Christina Sambor:  I think it is necessary to make sure that whatever the delivery vehicle 
and everyone working in the educational field is working and aware of human trafficking as 
it actually looks like in their schools.  
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Chairman K. Koppelman: If it were more general? It could just simply be an expansion or 
clarification of part of the mission of the commission to say education is a piece of that.  I feel 
disconnected. 
 
Christina Sambor:  The Commission is what is in statute.  Putting it in statute is the way to 
make sure something happens.  Then the commission works in conjunction with the task 
force and non-profit. 
   
Chairman K. Koppelman: This bill would employee your organization to do this? 
 
Christina Sambor: I believe that is correct. It would go on to the non-profit to do a lot of this 
work. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Is that something you would do as part of your mission or is that 
something where there is a fee structure where they would pay you to go out and do on the 
commissions behalf? 
 
Christina Sambor: We request funding to do this work and we receive some federal support 
as well.  That money is well used and this is part of that mission to educate the state. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Is that part of your mission? 
 
Christina Sambor:  It varies on funding source.   Some of the state money goes toward staff 
positions.  When it is specific services those are fees for service basis reimbursed primarily 
by federal funds.  
 
Stacy Schaffer, Founder and Director of the 31:8 Project: (Attachment #3) Read 
testimony. 
 
Mark Jorritsma:  Executive Director of Family Policy Alliance of ND: (Attachment #4) 
Read Testimony. (24:56- 27:51) 
 
Opposition: None 
 
Neutral: None 
 
Ann Ellefson, Dept. of Public Instruction:  Just here to answer questions. 
 
Vice Chairman Karls:  I just became aware we no longer have teacher conventions in ND?  
Do they exist yet and would there be a platform for this bill? 
  
Ann Ellefson:  My understanding of the teacher’s convention and I attended that convention.  
I believe it changed when NDEA was merged with NE United and it became a bigger 
organization. ND United does not offer training during the two days off currently; however, 
during those times that are off there is a large conference that is held through NDCL and they 
do not offer training.   Now we focus on all educators including pre-k and leaders and 
administers.  That is not held any longer, but there is a venue in October where we do have 
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that training and I do believe we would welcome the trafficking topic as one of our sessions.  
Our attendance various from 500 to 900 educators. 
 
Hearing closed. 
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Chairman Koppelman:  Opened the meeting on HB 1541. 
 
Rep. Buffalo: (Attachment #1) Went over the proposed amendment. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: What is the effect of this Rep. Buffalo? 
 
Rep. Buffalo:  This would still add language to statute that would ask the human trafficking 
commission to provide information to educators and teachers. 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: Now it would read to provide information to teachers and 
administrators in this state in regard to human trafficking so it is much more general. 
 
Motion Made to Move an Amendment 19.0751.04001 by Rep. Buffalo; Seconded by 
Rep. Vetter 
 
Discussion: 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  I went over the numbers on human trafficking and in ND youth are 30 
times less likely to be trafficked in the state than the national average.  I don’t think this is not 
a problem, but maybe there are bigger problems to focus on. 
 
Rep. Buffalo:  Going back and targeting our youth we have a more successful outcome even 
seven generations down the line. 
 
Rep. McWilliams:  It is hard to quantify. 
 
Rep. Paur:  I will support the proposed amendment; but will resist the bill.  Two sessions ago 
we started this commission and gave them directive to outreach and determine the best path 
and we are funding them quite well; I think we are second guessing them.  I think we should 
go to the commission with it because they are the ones studying this issue. 
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Chairman K. Koppelman: The human trafficking started two sessions ago.  ND reacted like 
a lot of republican states did.  
 
Rep. Paur:  You said the trafficking commission requested this? They can’t do it now? 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: The Human Trafficking commission and now this new 
organization is with Youthworks now.  They look at their duties under law in the current statute 
and they want to add this to present it to educators. 
 
Voice Vote Carried 
 
Do Pass as Amended by Rep. Vetter; Seconded by Rep. Satrom 
 
Roll Call Vote:     Yes 7    No 7    Absent 0    Motion Failed 
 
Chairman K. Koppelman: We could try a do pass motion or send it out without committee 
recommendation. 
 
Motion Made to send the bill out without recommendation as amended by Rep. 
McWilliams 
Seconded by Rep. Satrom 
 
Roll Call Vote:      Yes    12   No 2      Absent  0.     Carrier:  Chairman K. Koppelman: 
 
Closed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 













2019 SENATE JUDICIARY 
 

HB 1541 

  



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Judiciary Committee 
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol 

HB 1541 
3/19/2019 

#33913 (35:28) 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Meghan Pegel / Marne Johnson 
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A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 54-12-33 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to presentations by the human trafficking commission. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 4 Attachments 

 
 
Chair Larson opens the hearing on HB 1541. 
  
Ruth Buffalo, District 27 Representative, testifies in favor (see attachment #1 for 
testimony and Polaris information) (0:45-4:50) 
 
Chair Larson: When we spoke about this earlier, and I asked if this would be during their 
teacher’s convention training, you said you thought it could be accomplished that way. 
 
Representative Buffalo: Yes, that was the original intent of this bill. The original bill was to 
get into the schools and provide training. After visiting with different key stakeholders 
regarding a one-time mandatory teacher convention, that language seeks to accomplish just 
that. 
 
Senator Bakke: There no longer is a state-wide mandatory teacher’s convention, the 
legislature took it away. Will you do it by regions or districts? Who will provide and plan this 
training? 
 
Representative Buffalo: Based on conversations with key stakeholders, like the Department 
of Public Instruction superintendent and other educational entities such as North Dakota 
United, they’re in support of this bill and they are working on putting a mechanism in place to 
provide a broader network of educational organizations. 
 
Senator Bakke: Is this mandatory training? It just says provide information. 
 
Representative Buffalo: Yes, that version of providing information to teachers and 
administrators in the state regarding human trafficking awareness and prevention will be 
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provided by the human trafficking commission, this is the amended version. Originally, the 
intent was to have the human trafficking commission present at an educational conference. 
This educational conference would be mandatory for educators to attend each year. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Could you elaborate on the House discussion? What you’ve 
presented as the way you would like it has changed to the way we have it now. 
 
Representative Buffalo: The main concern in the House Judiciary committee was where 
and when. This amended version, ‘provide information to teachers and educators in the state 
regarding human trafficking and awareness and prevention’ was the safest understanding 
since there is not a current existing educational conference at this time.  
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Could you accomplish what you want to accomplish with the original 
bill or the way we have it before us? 
 
Representative Buffalo: I believe the original language would accomplish the goal long-
term. Currently as stated, may have unintended consequences because of the broadness of 
it, and there is no vehicle to support this endeavor according to our key stakeholders who will 
be speaking next. 
 
Senator Myrdal: It says that ‘the human trafficking commission shall,’ they are the ones that 
provide this information. I want to make sure it’s not just a leaflet that gets thrown in the 
basket of the superintendent. This is important to get this information out. I’m not sure if this 
language is strong enough. 
 
Senator Bakke: I like this idea. The one concern I have is that we can train teachers today 
and 5 years down the road, there are a whole group of teachers who aren’t trained. Is this 
training yearly? How often do you envision this training being done? 
 
Representative Buffalo: My understanding is that there would be a new educational 
organization conference, all the different organizations across our state will be partners in 
collaborating a new annual conference. My understanding is that the human trafficking 
commission will meet teachers annually. 
 
(12:00) Kristen Baesler, State Superintendent, North Dakota Department of Public 
Instruction, testifies in favor 
 
Superintendent Baesler: The agency has worked with the Attorney General’s Office; I know 
they will be testifying as well. We did prefer the original language; agencies like very clear, 
distinct direction about what we are supposed to do. The original language said that BCI and 
the Attorney General’s Office would work with the DPI to offer annual training to our teachers. 
To clear up some questions, the teacher’s association previously held an annual conference. 
The legislation was changed and that conference went away. For 29 years, North Dakota 
DPI has held an annual conference every October that is a week prior to what used to be the 
North Dakota Teacher’s Convention, but is now the North Dakota Administrators Convention. 
Consistently the DPI partners with multiple agencies that provide a 2-day conference that 
begins Wednesday night every year. We felt this would be a very appropriate conference for 
us to have the opportunity to partner with the Attorney General’s Office and provide that 
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information to our teachers at that point in time. It is not a mandatory conference, but we 
have about 1000 registries that attend every year, along with principals, specialists, teachers, 
their superintendents. It’s administrators, building-level leaders, and teachers that attend this 
conference together. Most often school leaders rotate their teachers through, because school 
is held on those days, they do a rotation basis, once every two to four years, the majority of 
their staff can attend. That is the mechanism that we would prefer to use to establish this. 
When Representative Buffalo first began chatting with us, the original bill draft was for 
mandatory training for all of our school districts. As you all know, there gets to be a multitude 
of professional development that is required of teachers during those in-staff days. The list 
goes on and on, but suddenly those teachers aren’t using those days to learn how to become 
better instructors. So we felt this was a good way to partner with the human trafficking 
commission to reach a large number of teachers and educational leaders annually so there 
would be a consistent delivery. The language you have before you kind of gets to that point, 
but when the legislature leaves town, it leaves agencies trying to figure out how to do that, 
and becomes less clear for us. We prefer clear, direct language about what we are supposed 
to be doing, how often, and who we are supposed to be doing it with. 
 
Senator Myrdal: I agree; the language is vague. Do you have any suggestion as to language 
to accomplish what you are talking about? 
 
Superintendent Baesler: I do prefer the original language that said that the human 
trafficking commission would present information at a conference sponsored by DPI annually. 
 
Senator Bakke: In the past, when North Dakota United had their conference, we would have 
upwards of 5000 teachers, two days of no school, and we continue to not have those two 
days of school. The legislature took those two days of professional development away from 
teachers. I would like to see those days come back, so that teachers have a full two days, 
and not just a select few get this information.  You would have a conference where there 
would be training and speakers on this. Are you comfortable with looking at reinstating that 
teacher’s convention? 
 
Superintendent Baesler: There were two bills that had addressed that issue; they both 
failed. I would be very supportive. The challenge was the legislature said those two days 
could still be held, but they would no longer be paid contact days that would receive 
foundation aid from the state. Previously the law stated that either the teachers needed to 
attend the conference or they needed to be working in their schools. Those two days were 
eliminated and those days were removed from the calendar. The law states that school 
boards may not schedule school on those two calendar days. As we are moving through 
conference committee, the administrator’s association came in and said we hold our 
conference on those same two days. Administrators are having conference on those two held 
days in Bismarck. It’s a bit different; those administrators are paid for those days and their 
travel and conference fees are paid. Unfortunately, we are in the position, the DPI has 
considered moving our conference days to those two days off. It’s a complex situation, if we 
did, we believe we would not be prudent users of state dollars, we run our conference using 
state dollars, those teachers would be forced to make a decision about those 2 days off, most 
of them have children, do they pay for daycare to care for their children, while they pay for 
their travel, registration, hotel and meals to travel to Bismarck for a conference on which they 
aren’t contracted. Completely different situation than our administrators, who are under 
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contract, and are being reimbursed. We feel that although we would like to have all our 
teachers in one at the same time, it’s a lot to ask of them and we can’t risk the state dollars 
that we’re using to put on a statewide conference on days that aren’t contracted. 
 
Senator Bakke: Teachers always paid for their way, they came. It’s nothing new to teachers. 
I would like to see that. We would have to reinstate those days. Wouldn’t it shorten that year 
then, if they made those paid days? 
 
Superintendent Baesler: There’s multiple ways to do it. Originally the schools received state 
foundation aid, so those 2 days were part of the teacher’s contract. When those two days 
were moved, the school districts were given those same two professional days to do what 
they chose to do with those two days. I would be favor to reinstate those two days so we 
could gather our teachers. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: How many teachers are there in North Dakota? 
 
Superintendent Baesler: There are approximately 11,000 teachers employed in North 
Dakota. We have 111,000 students, and about 1000 administrators. 
 
Senator Luick: Are there any other changes? 
 
Superintendent Baesler: Not to my knowledge. 
 
Senator Luick: Do we know why they changed this? 
 
Superintendent Baesler: I’m not sure. In education committees, local control, there is a 
sense that the least prescriptive is the better of the two. Speaking as a state agency leader, 
and needing to implement what the intent of the legislature is, I prefer specifics and details. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Both the 04000 and 05000, neither one specifies what the 
information is. The only difference is one specifies an annual conference, but neither one 
specify what is provided. 
 
Superintendent Baesler: I believe that is a good thing as we move forward in learning more 
about this. The human trafficking commission will become more knowledgeable, more 
research based. We would hate to be prescriptive at this time. 
 
Senator Myrdal: The original language doesn’t take away local control per say. We do much 
more invasive things than this. Are there superintendents that would object to their teachers 
and students having information? 
 
Superintendent Baesler: I don’t believe so, I do believe it’s a sentiment of the House to 
make it as open as possible. But I am speculating, I can’t speak for them. I would say that 
this provides more local control for those local school districts and their boards to determine 
what they want to do with their two days of professional development. This is an opportunity 
to meet those needs at a state level. 
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(24:05) Christina Sambor, Youthworks, testifies in favor (see attachment #2) 
 
Sambor: I’ll just address a handful of things. First Youthworks would support restoration of 
the original language. I think it does a nice job of balancing not being specific, and not 
saying DPI and this conference, but saying a conference hosted by a statewide agency, 
attended by administrators and teachers. To the question about content, this is in the 
human trafficking commission, which is part of the human trafficking task force; a network 
of nonprofit agencies and state agencies. They are the folks on the ground training. 
Youthworks has provided training over the last three years to over 9000 professionals. This 
is training from people on the ground, doing casework, coordinating in communities to the 
point about local control, the basis of our navigator program, our nine multidisciplinary 
teams that meet around the state, their local protocols are developed by the communities in 
which they work. These are the people that are providing the training. I think the amended 
language has the problem of being both too broad, which can lead to handing out a 
pamphlet, or a mandate that our agency would not be able to execute, which is to provide 
information to every educator in the state. We work hard, and do partner with a lot of local 
schools, and we do get asked to come into schools and provide information. The original 
language does a nice job of honing in on what we’re saying, which is: annually, when we 
get as many educators and administrators together as we do, let’s put this topic on the 
table, that’s what the original language sought to do. Being from the agency that has done 
the education on trafficking, we would prefer the original language, we think it get the topic 
on educator’s radars, on an annual basis. A quarter of the people we serve in the state - 
roughly 322 victims since the inception of the task force - are minors. We need to make 
sure the education system is aware, and is talking to people who work with trafficked youth 
in the state. To the point about content, I think the fact that this is in the commission 
language helps effectuate that.  
 
(27:30) Cara Curry Hall, testifies in favor 
 
C. Hall: I’m here standing as a mother; I have a 15-year-old daughter in school. I want your 
support for this to be very intentional, to not just pose questions, but find solutions, and be 
really aggressive in stopping and preventing it. There are two situations that my daughter 
was faced with when she was 13-years-old. She loaned her phone to somebody. Someone 
was sexting with a 13-year-old girl; information we gave over to the high school. But there 
was a boy pressuring a little girl, a baby, twelve years old, to have sex with him on the 
telephone, and that leads to and comes from an attitude of human trafficking. Forcing little 
kids into this situation.  
The National Prayer Breakfast in Washington, where they launched a new initiative called 
“end it,” the reference is slavery. Human trafficking is slavery. One is too many, and it’s an 
opportunity for North Dakota to take remediation from the word. I’ve said before I a different 
context, ‘as goes North Dakota, so goes the nation.’ What we do here can impact the 
nation. It can stop it today. There can be severe consequences, and there needs to be, in 
the name of protecting our kids. I say that as a mother who worries every day, is my 
daughter going to be safe? Our community is changing the curriculum. My question is, as a 
parent and as an individual, how do we choose what is important to discuss? When our 
children and people are being trafficked, that’s what we need to discuss, we need to alter 
and shift to the current discussion, so we become relevant and that we have an opportunity 
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to stop and prevent these things from happening. I speak in support of the original bill, 
strengthen it, that it will have impact today. 
 
 
(30:45) Ken Hall, lobbyist, Three Affiliated Tribes, and former Councilman, testifies in 
favor 
 
K. Hall: I fully support this initiativee. As a council member in the biggest oil play in the 
country, the Bakken oil play, we were right in the middle of all of the action. One of the 
things that came forward, we have a councilwoman who has this topic dear to her heart, 
because she saw a lot. The women would come to her, and share stories. She had passed 
away in a traffic accident. It’s a human trafficking law in our criminal code. From that, Carl 
Fredricks, one of my relatives at the Colorado School of Law, they had their staff do some 
research and investigating, and came up with a white paper on human trafficking. It is 
public, it can be a guide for education, for training. One of the things I think we need to 
engage is the oil companies, because they have a corporate social responsibility, when 
they come to our land and our state. We all need to be educated when it comes to this 
issue. We are parents, grandparents, aunts and uncles. This is close to everybody’s heart. 
It should be very firm and taken very seriously. We do have a daughter and she faces a lot 
of things with social media. There’s things we can address when it comes to social media 
as well. It’s a multipronged strategy. 
 
 
(33:50) Stacy Schaffer, Executive Director and Founder of 31:8 Project, testifies in 
favor (see attachment #3)  
 
Schaffer: We work in the state to provide educational opportunities in regards to combating 
human trafficking. We have seen over the past couple of years in the work that we do for 
education for schools; we have started to see a difference in people proactively starting to 
recognize and identify situations involving human trafficking. I know if we can reach more 
teachers and educators across the state, we will continue to see a greater impact.  
 
Tracy Wilke, stood in favor 
 
Chair Larson closes the hearing on HB 1541. 
 
Further testimony in support was provided to the committee (see attachment #4). 
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A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 54-12-33 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to presentations by the human trafficking commission. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments 

 
 
Chair Larson begins discussion on HB 1541. 
 
Senator Myrdal: I would like to go back to the original language on this. It isn’t a mandatory 
thing, because it says to provide possibly to all teachers, I think the way it was amended 
down is lipstick. 
 
Chair Larson: So you are amending this bill to its original language? 
 
Senator Myrdal: Yes. Moves to amend to original language.  
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Seconds. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: I don’t like the first version either. It says ‘present annually,’ that’s 
good, ‘at a professional development conference directed towards all teachers.’ But I went 
the conference they, have, only 200 teachers come. They just don’t go. What the schools 
have gone to is five professional days, if we wanted to strengthen it, I would say we should 
say something like, ‘provide information and training annually to all school districts, teachers 
and administrators in the state in conjunction with other organizations including Youthworks, 
Project 31:8 and so forth, regarding human trafficking awareness and prevention. Because 
the human trafficking commission is very small in terms of staff, and if they are going to be 
called on to present, they aren’t going to get it done, they don’t have the manpower. If we do 
want to fix it, we should fix it better. 
 
Senator Bakke: The conference that they’re referring to is when schools on. You can’t have 
a lot of teachers going, most teachers aren’t able to go, because you can only have a certain 
percentage of your staff out of the building at a certain time. When we had the statewide 
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conference, teachers had to attend, because they were being paid, or they had to be working 
in their building. The training either has to be during one of their staff development days, 
which are sometimes planned by their district years in advance, so they can bring it good 
people, or you need to reinstate those conference days, and make them paid days like they 
were in the past. I wanted to do some amendments and find something, if I do that I can run 
it by Senator Dwyer. 
 
Chair Larson: I felt like we could do this because all of the testimony we heard said the 
original language is what they wanted. 
 
Senator Myrdal: The concern with the language that Senator Dwyer presented is that 
exactly, that the human trafficking commission is small. If we mandate this, they’re not going 
to be able to go to every school district and do that. Then we are leaving it hanging out there 
for anyone. In order to get it passed, it’s wise to restore it. We can apply that and her group 
would be able to meet that mandate. Ms. Baesler stated that superintendents try to circle 
their teachers into that. That’s one of the reasons we lost those two days, is that teachers 
didn’t go. I would suggest that we go back to the original, in order to get this bill passed. 
 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: The testimony preferred it as it was introduced, but it’s inoperable 
because there is no professional development conference, there is nothing to present 
annually. We may want to get into a conference committee, but if we’re just going to do that, 
in my mind we should come up with something that we think will happen. The reason they 
quit going is because they quit getting paid. The 5 professional development days that 
schools have to have, could have this training and it doesn’t have to be presented by human 
trafficking commission, it could be presented by Youthworks, that’s who does it currently. If 
we included that, we would have something that would happen. We should do better than 
just the House amendments.  
 
Chair Larson: Are we ready to take action? 
 
Senator Bakke: I would rather wait and have more discussion. 
 
Senator Myrdal: Withdraws Motion to amend. 
 
Chair Larson ends the discussion on HB 1541. 
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#34200 (04:22) 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Meghan Pegel 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 54-12-33 of the North Dakota Century 
Code, relating to presentations by the human trafficking commission. 

 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments 

 
 
Chair Larson begins discussion on HB 1541. 
 
Chair Larson: Representative Buffalo had wanted it to be turned back to the original 
language. 
 
Senator Bakke: This is just saying information goes to teachers and administrators regarding 
human trafficking awareness and prevention. That’s the bill right? What was in the original 
one? 
 
Chair Larson: It had initially said, “present annually at a professional development 
conference directed toward all teachers and administrators which is hosted by educational 
organizations in the state regarding human trafficking awareness and prevention”. That’s 
what the original language said. Then it was changed to information. 
 
Senator Myrdal: I visited with DPI and she agreed with returning it to the original language. 
 
Chair Larson: There was just that one question to change page 2 back to its original 
language. 
 
Senator Myrdal: Motions to restore the bill back to its original form in the .04000 
version. 
Vice Chairman Dwyer: Seconds. 
 
A Roll Call Vote was Taken: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. Motion carries. 
 
Senator Luick: Motions for a Do Pass as Amended. 
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Senator Myrdal: Seconds. 
 
A Roll Call Vote was Taken: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. Motion carries. 
 
Senator Myrdal will carry the bill. 
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☐ Subcommittee 

☒ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:   DeLores D. Shimek 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to presentations by the human trafficking commission. 
  
 

Minutes:                                                   1,2 

 
Roll Call:  Rep. Paulson, Rep. Karls, Rep. Vetter; Senator Luick, Senator Myrdal, 
Senator Bakke 

 
Rep. Bob Paulson:  Read through the Senate transcript.  Presented proposed amendment 
19.0751.05003. (Attachment #1) 
 
Senator Myrdal:  We are going off the 50001 version? 
 
Rep. Bob Paulson:  What he did preparing this was the House version that went to the 
Senate.  That is the reason I did this written sheet to read.  (Attachment #2) 
 
Rep. Karls:  We liked this bill on the House side, except that it named the teachers 
convention, which we no longer have. So we were looking for wording to put it into some 
vehicle to be presented.   
 
Rep. Bob Paulson:  DPI did say that they plan to move towards one in the 2021 school year.  
The money was taken away from that so there are some challenges.  
 
Senator Bakke:  The administrators continue to have a conference at the time that the 
teachers use to have it.  I think the intent was that it could be presented at that conference; 
assuming that the administrators would go back with it.  I agree with you.  Unless you are 
really getting to the source of who is going to provide the information I think it would be better 
to train some counselor or some social workers and have them go back and train their 
individual staffs; otherwise you will not get to everybody. 
 
Rep. Bob Paulson:  Reading through the Senate transcript; if Superintendent Baesler is 
saying they like clear direction and what are they supposed to do; that is why included in the 
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amendment is in accordance with the Superintendent of Public Instruction because that gives 
clear guidance. 
 
Senator Myrdal:  Have you ran this by DPI? I think it meets the objective of what we had in 
our committee.  Our concern was the original language could have just had somebody hand 
out pamphlets and we wanted more than that. I appreciate this because this gives DPI the 
direction that they need. 
 
Rep. Bob Paulson:  Yes the concept; not the specific amendment. 
 
Motion Made that the Senate recede from the Senate amendments and amend as 
follows by Sen. Luick; Seconded by Senator Bakke 
 
Roll Call Vote:    6   Yes    0   No   0   Absent   
 
Closed. 
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☐ Subcommittee 

☒ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:   DeLores D. Shimek 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
 Relating to presentations by the human trafficking commission. 
 

Minutes:                                                   1 

 
Members present: Rep. Bob Paulson, Chairman, Rep. Karls, Rep. Vetter; Senator Luick, 
Senator Myrdal, Senator Bakke. 
 
Rep. Bob Paulson opened the conference committee hearing on HB 1541. 
 
Senator Luick: (Attachment #1) Proposed amendment .05005. I would like to have Kristen 
Baesler to go over the amendment.   
 
Kirsten Baesler, State School Superintendent of ND Dept. of Public Instruction:  Went 
over the proposed amendment. Just needed to make some changes to reflect the language 
to match the intent. There are a multitude of conferences that are hoisted by school board 
associations, counsel of educational leaders; which is our administrators and our principal’s 
organization and there is the counselor’s association that has annual meetings.  Why it was 
important to say education organizations in the state or by the Dept. of Public Instruction is if 
you would have left it at educational organization.  We are technically not an organization; 
we are a state agency. It asked two of your state agencies to work together; coordinate 
annually to provide information to educators. 
 
Senator Myrdal:  Having worked on this I think it meets the intent. The original version was 
weaker than what the amendment is now and I think the clarification from Ms. Baesler is 
helpful between the two agencies. The reason the Senate made changes in the first place 
we felt it was too weak.  It was handing out pamphlets to a school and I appreciate Senator 
Lucik’s attention to this amendment. 
 
Rep.  Karls:  I watched the debate on your floor and I noticed Senator Lee was quite insistent 
that there is a provision for this in the Dept. of Human Services budget in every school? 
 
Senator Myrdal:  I respectfully disagreed with her on the floor.  I think what she is looking at 
is the aftermath or the mental health issues in the aftermath.  This deals with prevention.  
What she was talking about had absolutely nothing to do with this bill.  
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Senator Bakke:  I think Senator Lee just wanted to be sure this bill didn’t fail.  That might 
have been some of the motivation. 
 
Senator Luick:  I believe she voted against it? I have to commend Senator Myrdal on her 
efforts on the floor.  This is an awareness and preventive attempt rather than after the fact.  I 
believe that outweighs any of the aftermath trails that we can possibly do. I don’t know why 
we wouldn’t.  It was astounding to me that it went the way it did.  I believe now the way we 
have it today this is going to be a better bill yet. Putting cards on a bulletin board is not going 
to work here.  You have to physically confront the kids and staff and actually get right into 
their faces if necessary to say that this is how important this is.  
 
Rep. Vetter:  On the floor debate wasn’t there another concern about giving teachers 
something else to do? 
 
Senator Bakke:  I made that comment.  This isn’t something that is being assigned to 
teachers.  It could go through councilors, which would be a perfect place for that to go through 
or the social workers or health class; or anywhere.   It doesn’t have to fall into the lap of a 
teacher. 
 
Senator Myrdal:  Often any group of certain ones felt it was a mandate.  Some of our 
education senators felt it was a mandate.  I don’t think we fully understand the severity of sex 
trafficking that is actually present.  I think now those senators on the floor have been talked 
to and are agreeable. 
 
Senator Myrdal:  Motion Senate recede from Senate amendments and amend as 
follows 19.0751.05005. 
 
Senator Luick:  Second 
 
Roll Call Vote:   6   Yes   0   No   0 Absent     Carriers:  Rep. Paulson, Senator Myrdal. 
 
Adjourned. 
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